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1881 British Census

Dweling: High St Yards End
Census Place: March, Cambridge, England
Source: FHLFilm 1341404 PRO Ref RG11 Piece 1691 Folio 35 Page 21

Mamr Age Sex Birthplace

Charles UPCHURCH #1851 M 60 M Woodhurst, Huntingdon, England A~ abasd™ 1311

Ruth UPCHURCH M 49 F Wimblington, Cambridge, England /. afocwk 1837
Frank UPCHURCH® 12 M March, Cambridge, England A clant 867
Sarah E. UPCHURCH 8 F March, Cambridge, England I~ a,[/-""‘L 1893
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutcheroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see [ don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason | think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nece Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”!

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.**

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicton that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robertborn 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I'am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton™. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”"

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington 3

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armived 1n Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father &l_lgnj‘told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allanistayed with

h.icsféousin Jack Clapham in London when helvisited in 1936.
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James® death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®
Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy?in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy UpchurcH'and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. o
I am not sure what year James was bom, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828, T wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroling’is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutcheroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where

the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”'

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington 3

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arnved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James® daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.

Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. o
I'am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. T wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?
I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.
Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”!
In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private
residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®

y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.3

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arrived in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marmiage and g)lig’_s.}"ather Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s: father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James® daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellingtor. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”"

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she marmed Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.>*

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arrived in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward?
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
| do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edwardborn 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.

Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. o
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jor gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. Isee what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879,
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where

the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial,”!

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.>*

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.%

James Upchurch armived 1n Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Claphamiborn in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.

Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death

certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 188] census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James” mother Ann Upchurch (Hutcheroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They werc married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she marmed Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.**

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arrived 1n Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.

Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. [ couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off, I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James'son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutcheroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”"

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington >

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.

Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The

marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®
Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also {aﬂggkon of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as T can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.*

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their

births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that Jim,_gé?joincd hi§ 'sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his’,
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when hé died in 1912. I couldn’t find him'in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his/fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James;was born, he,was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James” est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From hi§ death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. T wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James{at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurc?and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James™
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off, I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is 2 Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.**

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936. i
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were bom in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their

births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death

certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,

9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.’

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. o
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr, gives his/
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 hisiincle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his, aunt Caroline is living with the family. James|"
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. Isee what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’, mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Uchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton™. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.**

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armved in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of hintin the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when Jamesimet Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James/is speculation but we do know that James|taised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936. i
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James | daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’| death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of Jame$and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry Jamesiwhich they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James/ gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®
Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.
James/married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. .
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est.,, DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, _18_813 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutcheroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”!

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.3

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armived i Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. [ couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. o
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jor gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of J_oh_ﬁ&‘and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”"

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.?*

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arrived 1n Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on J oscph? side. .
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)
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I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph,(plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, :Ioscghf\went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason [ think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she marmed Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.*

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armived in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
I do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only I1 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. .
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy} 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch, is
she the daughter of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James’ mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaretyhas told me that hery
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial.”"!

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
y 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she married Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington >

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch armived in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side.
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomas in 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye researched by S. Wise)



I must admit that I have no real evidence the James in Hackney, 1881 is our James’
father other than circumstantial evidence. On the shipping list James jnr gives his
place of origin as Middlesex, in 1881 his uncle Joseph, (plumber) is married and living
in Hammersmith, London and his aunt Caroline is living with the family. James’
cousin, (also James, son of Thomas & Mary Ann Coe) although back in Huntingdon
had been in London long enough to have had two daughters born in Chelsea between
1874-78. Not concrete evidence I admit, I should really try and find the family in the
1871 census, London is so huge that I have put it off. I see what you mean about the
other James in the 1881 census and it should really be checked out. There is a Sarah
Upchurch bapt Eaton Socon 25 April 1847 daughter of James and Sarah Upchurch;is
shé the daughter/of James son of John and Elizabeth (nee Teat)?

I haven’t found a death record for James” mother Ann Upchurch (Hutchcroft) in
Huntingdon, but there is a Ann Upchurch who died Greenwich, age 69 Sept Qtr 1879.
1d 483. Ann was born in 1816 not 1810 but as she has never given her correct age as
far as I can see I don’t think that is an issue. Margaret has told me that her
grandfather, Joseph went to a Bluecoat School, there is one in Greenwich which is
another reason I think she will prove to be James snr’s wife.

Maria was born 13th August 1838 in Gt Mongeham, Kent, England. She was the
youngest of six children born to John and Maria Castle (nee Farrier). On the 19th
Nov 1839 John sailed with his family as servant to the Rev Churton aboard the
“Bolton”. “She was a slow craft and didn’t reach Port Nicholson (Wellington) until
30th April 1840. All the Bolton’s passengers were landed at Thorndon beach where
the majority of them lived in primitive shanties known as Bolton Row until they
could build themselves something more substantial ™!

In February 1857 a licence was granted for Maria Castle aged eighteen and six months
to marry John Wilson, mariner, aged 33yrs. They were married at the private

residence of the Rev., Harry Grein. in Wellington®
By 1865 Maria was a widow with no children, she marmed Joshua Clapham

(bachelor), 23rd July 1865 at the Primitive Methodist Chapel, Sidney St,
Wellington.**

In the 1865-66 electoral roll Joshua Clapham’s address is Thorndon Quay, Wellington
The first child of this marriage was Joshua in 1866, followed by William Henry,
Frank. Francis and then Helen who was born in 1875.

James Upchurch arrived in Wellington on the “Helen Denny” in 1873 at the age of 21
and I can find no trace of him in the electoral rolls during his early years in NZ. How
or when James met Maria is unknown and whether Maria had been abandoned by her
husband or left him for James is speculation but we do know that James raised the
children by Maria’s previous marriage and Colin’s father Allan told us that Edward
didn’t realise his brothers had a different father until he was quite old. In fact the
boy’s did keep their fathers name of Clapham and Colin’s father Allan stayed with

his cousin Jack Clapham in London when he visited in 1936.
1 do have a suspicion that Helen Clapham born in 1875 is in fact James’ daughter.

The reason I think this is two fold; children were often named after the boat a settler
had come out on and on James’ death cert surviving children are given as two boys
and one daughter. There are three known sons of James and Maria; Robert born 1876,
Edward born 1879 and James born 1881 but who died the following year. All three
children were born in Christchurch, in the South Island of New Zealand but their
births were never registered and only James appears to have been baptised.
Joshua Clapham died 12 Dec 1913 aged 89 years in Wellington. On the death
certificate the name of his wife is given as Maria Castles, living issue; four males and
one female. Maria was now free to marry James which they did in Palmerston North,
9th February 1914 at the registrars office. James gave his age as 60 and Maria as 65
(only 11 yrs out). James gives his status as a bachelor and Maria as a widow. The
marriage was witnessed by A Clapham and F Clapham.®

Maria died of bronchitis/heart failure at Wellington Hospital on 12 June 1918.

James married Sarah Jane Taylor in 1920, and died 27 July 1924 in Wellington.®
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We believe that James joined his sons in New Zealand about 1886, according to his
death cert he had been in NZ for 26yrs when he died in 1912. I couldn’t find him in
the shipping list at the National Archives as his fare must have been paid privately,

which is supported by family oral history on Joseph’s side. ]
I am not sure what year James was born, he was baptised with his sister Lucy, 21

Sept 1828 at Huntingdon. Working from the ages given in the census James’ est.,
DOB. is 1825 (1851 census). From his death cert. est., DOB is 1823 ( which I think
is too early) there is a five year gap between the baptisms of Thomasiin 1823 and
James in 1828. I wonder if the parents waited hoping to baptise James at St Neots as
they did with his younger sister Betsy in 1830. (I have included a family chart of
Betsy Upchurch and her husband William Yeardye rescarched by S. Wise)
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